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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Palred Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone financial statements of Palred Technologies Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement
of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2022, and profit, changes in Equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Subsidiaries:

Refer to the disclosures related to Investments in Note 5
of the standalone financial statements for the year ending
March 31, 2022.

The company has three subsidiaries, out of which
investment in two of the subsidiaries (Palred Retail Private
Limited and Palred Technology Services Private Limited)
amounts to Rs. 3.04 Crores and Rs.13.01 Crores
respectively. The management has provided for
impairment in the carrying value of the investment in
Palred Technologies Services Private Limited amounting to
Rs. 7.77 Crores, Rs. Nil Crores and Rs. 4.75 Crores in FY
2018 -19, FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21 respectively and
impairment in the carrying value of the investment in
Palred Retail Private Limited amounting to Rs. 3.04 Crores
during the year.

Further investment in one of the subsidiaries (Palred
Electronics Private Limited) amounts to Rs. 4.53 Crores.
Based on the turnover of the Palred Electronics Pvt Ltd &
the valuation report of the Palred Technologies Limited,
management has reversed the impairment done in earlier
years in Palred Electronics Private Limited amounting to
Rs 7.45 Crores.

Such investments are accounted for at cost in accordance
with Ind AS 27, Separate Financial Statements.

The Company assesses the recoverable amount of the
investment when impairment indicators exist, by
comparing the fair value (less costs of disposal) and
carrying amount of the investment as on the reporting
date. The investments are tested for impairment on
account of continuous losses incurred by the subsidiary
entity. The process for measuring and recognizing
impairment loss is complex and requires management
judgement. The key assumptions underpinning
management’s assessment of valuation include, but are
not limited to, projections of recoverable amounts of
recognized assets and liabilities, revenue projections and
market valuation of the company. The recovery of
investments of the company depends on subsidiaries
establishing profitable business in future.

Considering the materiality, complexity and significance of
the judgement involved, valuation of investments has
been considered to be a key audit matter.

[ Sr. No Key Audit Matter How the Key Audit Matter was
) addressed in our audit
1 Valuation of Investments in Equity Shares of Our audit procedures in

respect of this area included:

1. Obtained an understanding
and assessed management's
process and controls w.r.t.
determining valuation of
investments.

2. Evaluated and tested the
design and the operating
effectiveness of the key
controls in relation to
valuation.

3. Verified the Company’s
valuation methodology,
assumptions and arithmetical
accuracy for determining the
fair value of the investment as
obtained from the management
assessment.

4. Tested the mathematical
accuracy of the computation by
comparing the pro rata share of
net assets of each of the
subsidiaries to the investment
held by the Company and
market value of the company to
the consolidated net worth.

5. Verified the Valuation report
of Palred Technologies Limited.

6. Evaluated the reasonableness
of the future revenue and
margins, the historical accuracy
of the Company’s estimates and
its ability to produce accurate
long-term forecasts.

7. Evaluated the
appropriateness of the
disclosures made in the
financial statement in relation
to such investments as required
by applicable accounting

standards.




Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the standalone financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in Equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracyly and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements.



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)

(g)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1.

fi.

ifi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone financial statements - Refer Note 29 to the Standalone financial statements;
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The Management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
N\'\(’ !
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V. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

3. As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to information,
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors is within the limits
laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For M S K A & Associates

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No\ 105047W
X

‘o i

Amit Kumar Agarwa
Partner

Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 22214198AJBCCG5991

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022.



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF PALRED TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.



From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2022, and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 1\5047 )

atlye

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.214198
UDIN: 22214198AJBCCG5991

\

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022.



ii.

ifi.

iv.

vi.

vii.

(@)

ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
PALRED TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report]

(a) A. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no immovable properties, and
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and its intangible assets. Accordingly,
the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is involved in the business of rendering services. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3(ii) (a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not made any investments in,
provided any guarantee or security, or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, the
requirements under paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the
director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has
not made investments through more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the
provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied
with the provisions of sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act, the rules framed thereunder and the
Circulars, notifications issued from time to time with regard to the deposits accepted. No order has
been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or
any Court or any other Tribunal in this respect.

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products
of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined
by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, cess have been regularly deposited by the company with
appropriate authorities in all cases during the year. (



viii.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company, the

ix.

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

()

(b)

xi.

(@)

(b)

outstanding dues of income-tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any other statutory
dues on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount Rsin | Period to which the Forum where dispute is |

statute dues lakhs. amount relates pending ‘

Income Tax Income 602.00 AY 2007-08 Income Tax Appellate ‘
Act, 1961 Tax |  Tribunal, Hyderabad

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not
accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been now
recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any loans or borrowings and repayment to lenders during the year.
Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix) (a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

in our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, no money was raised by way
of term loans. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

In our opinion, according to the information explanation provided to us, there are no funds raised on
short term basis. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information explanation given to us and on an overall examination of the standalone
financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from an any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its securities,
joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully, partly or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated
in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company
nor on the Company.

We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during
the course of audit of the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2022, accordingly the
provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.



(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the course of audit. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the Order
is not applicable to company.

xii.
(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.
(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered internal audit reports issued by internal auditors during our audit.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the Company
has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its directors and
hence, provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to company. Accordingly, the provisions
stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi.

(@) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 |A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under
paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

(d) The Company does not have more than one CIC as a part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  According to the information explanation provided to us, the Company has not incurred cash losses in
the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the provisions stated
in paragraph clause 3 (xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.



xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of financial
ratios, ageing and expected date of realization of financial assets and payment of liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit
report and the Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

XX.
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are

not applicable to the Company. Hence, the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

For M S K A & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registra . 0504
v
Ve

tion No

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.214198
UDIN: 22214198AJBCCG5991

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022



ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF PALRED TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent
Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Palred Technologies Limited on the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2022]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Palred
Technologies Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal
control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) (the
“Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur
audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,



including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detait,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With reference to Standalone financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No
¢
|’/’(\ &j/

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.214198
UDIN: 22214198AJBCCG5991
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Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022



Palred Technologies Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes '31 March 2022 31 March 2021
ASSETS
Nonh-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 5.32 7.15
Right of Use Assets 4 (a) 14.29 -
Financial assets
Investments 5 1,198.14 805.62
Other non-current assets 6 275.60 255.44
Total non-current assets 1,493.35 1,068.21
Current assets
Financial assets
Investments 5 - 22.95
Trade receivables 7 - 0.83
Cash and cash equivalents 8 1.83 4,01
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 9 2,368.01 1,447.63
Other financial assets 10 11.18 127.60
Other current assets 11 0.66 2,01
Total current assets 2,381.68 1,605.03
Total assets 3,875.03 2,673.24
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 973.26 973.26
Other equity 13 2,819.08 1,617.90
Total equity 3,792.34 2,591.16
Liabilities
Non-current labilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 4 (b) 7.73 0.00
Provisions 14 14,92 13.49
Total non-current liabilities 22.65 13.49
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 4 (b) 7.12 0.00
Other financial liabilities 15 49.56 66.30
Other current liabilities 16 2.98 1.96
Provisions 14 0.38 0.33
Total current liabilities 60.04 68.59
Total liabilities 82.69 82.08
Total equity and liabilities 3,875.03 2,673.24
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-40

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Palred Technologies Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit /(Loss) before exceptional item

Exceptional item
Profit /(Loss) before tax

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share (INR)
Diluted earnings per equity share (INR)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
17 150.00 151.02
18 70.22 81.17
220,22 232,19
19 101.44 93.41
20 1.42 0.31
21 8.97 9.46
22 100.07 87.71
211.90 190.89
8.32 41,30
23 392.51 (475.14)
400,83 (433.85)
0.36 0.22
0.36 0.22
401.19 (433.63)
4.12 (4.46)
4.10 (4.46)
1-40
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Palred Technologies Limited

Statement of standalone cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities

Year ended

31 March 2022

Year ended

31 March 2021

Profit before tax 400.83 (433.84)
Adjustments for: -
Depreciation and amortization expenses 8.97 9.46
Dividend on Mutual Fund (0.20) (1.27)
Finance cost 1.42 0.31
Interest income (70.02) (78.98)
Income on derecognition of lease - (0.91)
Impairment towards investment in subsidiaries (392.52) 475.14
Operating loss before working capital changes (51.52) (30.09)
Changes in working capital
Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables 0.83 31.41
(Decrease)/ increase in other current liabilities (13.83) (0.30)
(Decrease)/ increase in non-current liabilities (16.75) (6.33)
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions 1.83 1.01
Decrease/ (increase) in other financial assets 116.43 (71.74)
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets 1.35 (0.89)
Decrease/ (Increase) in non-current assets 1.74 8.25
Cash generated used in operations 40.08 (68.68)
Income Tax 21.90 21.30
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A) 18.18 (89.98)
Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - (0.08)
Net proceeds from mutual funds 22.95 5.73
Dividend income from mutual funds 0.20 1.27
Net proceeds from fixed deposits (920.38) -
Interest received 78.29 78.98
Net cash flow from investing activities (B) (818.94) 85.90
Cash flow from Financing activities
Money received against share warrants 800.00 -
Interest paid (1.42) (0.31)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 798.58 (0.31)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2.18) (4.39)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,01 8.39
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1.83 4.01
Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with banks
On current accounts 1.81 3.79
Cash on hand 0.02 0.22
Total cash and bank balances at end of the year 1.83 4,01
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-40
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Palred Technologies Limited
Statement of standalone changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
(A) Equity share capital '31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Opening 97,32,566 973.26 97,32,566 973.26
Add: issue during the year - - - -
Closing 97,32,566 973.26 97,32,566 973.26
(B) Other equity
Reserves and surplus Other Comprehensive
Income Money received
against share Total
. Security . ) Remeasurement warrants
Capital Reserve . General reserve  Retained earnings of defined
premium
benefit plans

Balance as at 1 April 2020 142.80 6,720.30 1,325.24 (6,133.34) (3.48) - 2,051.53
Loss for the year - - - {433.85) - - {433.85)
Other comprehensive income - - - 0.22 - 0.22
Balance as at 31 March 2021 142.80 6,720.30 1,325.24 (6,567.19}) (3.26) - 1,617.90
Profit for the year - - 400.83 - - 400.83
Other comprehensive income - 0.36 - 0.36
Money received against share warrants 800.00 800.00

142.80 6,720.30 1,325.24 {6,166.36) (2.90) 800.00 2,819.08
See accompanying notes to the financial
statements 1-40

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate Information
Palred Technologies Limited (the "Company") is a public company incorporated and domiciled in India and incorporated in accordance with the provisions of the
erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The Company’s registered office is at 8-2-703/2/B/, Plot No.2, Road No.12, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana-500 034. lts
shares are listed on two recognised stock exchanges of India, the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. The Company is engaged in the
business of E commerce.

The Board of Directors approved the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 and authorised for issue on 16 May 2022.

2 Basis of preparation of standalone financial statements

Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

(i

-

(W

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the "Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. These financial statements have heen prepared for
the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant IND AS that are effective at the Company's annual reporting date 31 March 2022.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for the following material items in the Balance sheet:
i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured either at fair value; and
ii) Net defined assets/ (Liability) are measured at fair value of plan assets, less present value of defined benefit obligations.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimate and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
financial statements and reported amount of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the standalone financial statements in the period in which changes are made and in any
future periods effected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements is included in the following notes:

i. Note (c ) and (d) — Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets;
ii. Note (e) — Impairment;

iii. Note (g) — Financial instruments;

iv. Note (k) — Employee benefits;

v. Note (m) — Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets; and

vi. Note {l) — Income taxes

Summary of significant accounting policies
The standalone financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies and measurement basis summarized below.

Functional Currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR’) which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company. All
financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the
Division ll- Ind AS Schedule Ill to the Act. The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

i. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

iii. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current when:

i. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

il. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

iii. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-Current assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities including deferred tax assets
and liabilities are classified as non-current.

dl ’"',."
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Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

c, Property, plant and equipment (PPE)
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, and estimated costs of dismantting and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. If significant parts of an item of
PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (Major components) of PPE.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or dispasal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances. Capital
Work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/ under development as at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation on property, pant and equipment is calculated on pro-rata basis on straight line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by
management. The useful life is as follows:

Asset Useful life (in years)
Leasehold improvement Lease period
Vehicles 10 years

Fumiture and Fixtures 10 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Computers:

-Servers 6 years

-End user devices such as, desktops, laptops etc. 3 years

Depreciation on additions/ disposals is provided on pro-rata basis i.e. from/ up to the date on which asset is ready for use/ disposed-off,

The useful lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events. The residual values are not more than 5% of
the original cost of the assets. The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year- end and adjusted
retrospectively, if appropriate.

d. Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment. These are derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date
the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from disposal of the
intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.

Intangible assets are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The other intangible assets comprise of computer software expenditure and are amortized over a period of three years. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

e. Impairment
Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the
purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets.

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset or its cash generating unit is lower than
its carrying amount. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment {oss had been previously recognised.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial
assets measured at amortised cost.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. For all
other financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal ta the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at tifetime ECL.

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the assets.
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Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Atl amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

f. Leases:

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under Ind AS 17.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life
of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of
property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements
of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: -

i. Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

ii. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

iti. Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

iv. The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not
to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in
‘loans and borrowings’ in the statement of financial position. (Refer 4).

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of real estate properties that have a lease term of
12 months. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Comparative Information under Ind AS 17

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Company classified leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership as finance leases.
When this was the case, the leased assets were measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the payments over the lease term that the lessee was required to make, excluding any
contingent rent.

Subsequently, the assets were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognised in the Company's statement of financial position. Payments
made under operating leases were recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognised
as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
asset to the Company. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to the profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Land under perpetual lease for is accounted as finance lease which is recognised at upfront premium paid for the lease and the present value of the lease
rent obligation. The corresponding liability is recognised as a finance lease obligation. Land under non-perpetual lease is treated as operating lease.

Operating lease payments for land are recognised as prepayments and amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals, if
any, arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.




Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatary informatian for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabitities are initially recognised when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value and, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

i. amortised cost;

if. fair value through other comprehensive income {“FVTOCI”) - debt investment;

iii. FVTOCI - equity investment; or

iv. FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets.

Amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FYTPL:
i. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in Other Income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of prafit or loss.

FVYTOCI - debt investment
A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
i. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair vatue. Fair value movements are
recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCl). However, the Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified
from the equity to statement of profit or loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity investment
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FYTOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by- investment basis.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair vatue changes on the instrument, including foreign exchange gain or loss
and excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FYTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at
FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading,
or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest methad. Interest expense and fareign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit or loss.

De-recognition

Financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. —




Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial Instruments and hedge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts and interest rate risk exposures to hedge its risk associated with
foreign currency fluctuations and changes in interest rates. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value and subsequent to initial recognition,
derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in statement of profit or loss, since the Company’s hedging
instruments did not qualify for hedge accounting in accordance with the Ind-AS 39. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive
and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of presentation in the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with financial institutions, other short - term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised and the distribution
is no langer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

h. Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreigh currencies at the reporting period are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that
date. Non-monetary items denominated in fareign currencies which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or any other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were
initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

i. Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries
The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries at cost in the separate financial statements in accordance with
the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’.

The Company regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee), determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls
the investee. The Company controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Thus, the Company controls an investee if and only if it has all the following:

(a) power over the investee;
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns.

Investments are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of investment, the difference between its
carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

j. Revenue recognition

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with customers, using modified retrospective application method with effect from 1 April
2018 and accordingly these financial statements are prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 115. The
application of Ind AS 115 did not have any significant impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial statements of
the Company as the Company is yet to identify the business opportunities in the areas of IT Solutions and services.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange far those products or services.

Other income - Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable. For all debt instruments measured
at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) methad. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a sherter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash
flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses.

Other income - Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally, when shareholders approve the
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Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accaunting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AWl amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

k. Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as and when the services are received from the employees
entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end
of each annual reporting period. The Company recognises the net abligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability in its balance sheet. Gains or losses
through remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the
subsequent periods. The effect of any plan amendments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as Salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on an undiscounted and accrual basis during the
period when the employee renders service of the benefit.

l. Taxes

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit or loss consists of current and deferred tax except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OCI or
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively.

Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates and the tax laws that are
enacted at the reporting date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
carresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the Company.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference can
be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the retated tax benefit
will be realised. Withholding tax arising out of payment of dividends to shareholders under the Indian Income tax regulations is not considered as tax
expense for the Company and all such taxes are recognised in the statement of changes in equity as part of the associated dividend payment.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is reasonably certain that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down
to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

As at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company has deferred tax asset on account of unabsorbed business loss, unabsorbed tax depreciation and
other items, which have not been recognized on the grounds of prudence. Consequently, there is no deferred tax asset or liability recorded in the financial
statements as at reporting periods presented.

Further, as at 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021, the Company has MAT credit of Rs. 9,17,53,770, carried forwarded under the Income-tax laws, not
recognised in books due to lack of reasonably certainty.

m. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can
be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.
Contingent liability is disclosed for:
i. Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

ii. Present obligations arising from past events where it is not prabable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognized.
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Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

n.

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

V)

Cash flow statement

The Cash flow statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method. Cash flow statement present the cash flows by operating, financing and investing
activities of the Company. Operating cash flows are arrived by adjusting prafit or loss before tax for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash
flows.

Exceptianal ltems

Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a full understanding of the Company’s financial
performance. Items which may be considered exceptional are significant restructuring charges, gains or losses on disposal of investments in subsidiaries,
impairment losses/write down in value of investment in subsidiaries, significant disposal of fixed assets etc.

Earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Standards (including amendments) issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been
applicable from April 01, 2022.

Standards that became effective during the year
There are no new Standards that became effective during the year. The Company has applied certain amendments that became effective during the year
which are discussed below:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an
alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

-A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a
floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest

-Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued

-Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a
risk component

These amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company intends to use the practical expedients in future periods as
and when it become applicabte.

Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore, this does not form part of a set of standards pronounced by the
standard-setters. While, the Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for formulating the standards, it has relevance to the preparers in
certain situations such as to develop consistent accounting policies for areas that are not cavered by a standard or where there is choice of accounting
policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS .includes amendment of the footnote to
the definition of an equity instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added for definition of liability i.e. definition of liability is not
revised on account of revision of definition in conceptual framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS vide notification dated June 18, 2021, applicable for
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly, the Conceptual Framewaork is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2021,

These amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 to update the condition for lessees to apply the relief to
a reduction in lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2021. In case a lessee has not yet approved the financial statements for issue before the issuance of this amendment, then the same
may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020.

These amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 103: Business combination

The MCA clarified that for the purpose of this Ind AS, acquirers are required to apply the definition of asset and liability given in the framework for
preparation and presentation of financial statements with Indian Accounting standards rather than the conceptual framework. Therefore, the acquirer
does hot recognise those costs as part of applying the acquisition method. Instead, the acquirer recognises those costs in its post-combination financial
statements in accordance with other Ind AS.

These amendments have no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28
In the definition of “Recoverable amount” the words “the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use” are replaced with “higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use”. The consequential amendments are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 ar%&‘!&-
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Palred Technologies Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold . Furniture and Office
Vehicles ) . Computers Total
Improvement Fixtures Equipment
Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 3.16 0.34 37.47 6.08 5.74 52.79
Additions - - 0.08 - - 0.08
Disposals/retirement - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3.16 0.34 37.55 6.08 5.74 52.87
Additions - - - - - -
Disposals/retirement - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3.16 0.34 37.55 6.08 5.74 52.87
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 31 March 2020 3.16 0.24 28.74 5.57 5.52 43.23
Additions 0.03 2.25 0.10 0.11 2.48
Disposals/retirement - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 3.16 0.27 30.99 5.67 5.63 45.71
Charge for the year - 0.02 1.70 0.06 0.05 1.83
Additions - - - -
Disposals/retirement - - - - - .
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3.16 0.29 32.69 5.73 5.68 47.54
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2021 - 0.07 6.56 0.41 0.11 7.15
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2022 - 0.05 4.86 0.35 0.06 5.32
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Palred Technologies Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

4 (a) Right of Use Asset as at 31 March 2022

(b)

Category of
Particulars ROU Asset Total
Buildings
Balance as at 1 April 2021 - -
Additions 21.43 21.43
Deletions - -
Depreciation 7.14 7.14
Balance as at 31 March 2022 14.29 14.29

The aggregate depreciation expenses on ROU Assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of

Profit and Loss.

Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022

Particulars As at
31 March 2022
i) Non-Current 7.73
i) Current 7.12
Total 14,85
The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2022 is as follows:
As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

Balance as at 1 April 2021

Additions 21.43
Finance cost accrued during the year 1.42
Deletions -
Payment of lease liabilities 8.00
Balance as at 31 March 2022 14.85
The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022 on an undiscounted basis as follows:
Particulars As at
31 March 2022

Less than one year 7.12
One year to three years 7.73
More than three years -
Total 14.85




Palred Technologies Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

1)

ii)

iif)

5 Financial Assets- Investments

Non-Current
Investments in unquoted equity shares (Fully paid up, unless stated otherwise)
In Subsidiaries (Carried at cost)

Palred Electronics Private Limited( Formerly knawn as Palred Online Technologies Private Limited), principal

place of business at Hyderabad, India

Number of shares

Par value of each share

% of holding

Gross Carrying Amount

Reversal of Impairment towards investments (Refer Note below)
Net Carrying Amount

Palred Retail Private Limited, principal place of business at Hyderabad, India
Number of shares

Par value of each share

% of holding

Gross Carrying Amount

Impairment towards investments (Refer Note below)

Net Carrying Amount

Palred Technology Services Private Limited, principal place of business at Hyderabad, India
Number of shares

Par value of each share

% of holding

Gross Carrying Amount

Impairment towards investments (Refer Note below)

Net Carrying Amount

Total

Current

Investments in mutual funds, non-trade, unquoted

Nil units (31 March 2021: 2199.586 units) of Kotak Arbitrage Fund - Monthly Dividend Reinvestment plan
Total

Note:

Aggregate amount of quoted investments

Aggregate book value of unguoted investments
Aggregate amount of impairment of value in investment

Note:

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

2,72,06,574 2,72,06,574
10 10

78.17% 78.17%
453.00 453.00

(745.14)

1,198.14 453.00
30,40,000 30,40,000
10 10

97.81% 97.81%
304.00 304.00
304.00 -

. 304.00
1,30,10,000 1,30,10,000
10 10

100% 100%
48.62 523.77
43.62 475.14

- 48.62
1,198.14 B05.62
22.95

= 22,95

22.95

1,198.14 805.62
(392.51) 475.14

Due to changes in the business conditions viz. the subsidiary companies (Palred Retail Private Limited and Palred Technology Services Private Limited) facing
increased competition, higher customer acquisition costs etc. The subsidiary company strategically downsized the operations and employee base to cut down the
future losses. On the basis of management evaluation, the aggregate carrying amount of investments exceeds the recoverable amount by Rs. 304.00 lakhs and Rs.
48.62 lakhs respectively as of 31 March 2022. Accordingly, the management has created provision for diminution in value of investment aggregating to Rs. 304.00
lakhs and Rs. 48.62 lakhs respectively as at 31 March 2022. Further the Company had impaired its investment in Palred Electronics Private Limited against which
provision for impairment was provided in earlier years. Based upon the assessment of carrying value of investments, the company has reversed it's impairment of

Rs. 745.14 lakhs which was provided earlier.
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Summary of significant accounting polici
(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Palred Technologies Limited

Gther non-current assets

Advance tax (net of provision)
Balances with government authorities
Total other non-current other assets

Trade receivable

Secured, considered good
Unsecured

and other

P

y information for the year ended 31 March 2022

As at As at
31 march 2022 31 March 2021
275.60 253.70
- 1.74
275.60 255.44
Non-Current Current
As at As at As at As at

31 march 2022

31 March 2021

31 march 2022

31 March 2021

-Considered good - - 0.83
- - - 0.83
Ageing of Trade Receivables
31 March 2022 Current
Unbilted Out ding for following periods from due date of Receipts
Particulars Dues Not Due | Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 More than Total
months -1 year years years 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered - - - - - K - .
good
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have - - - - - - .
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit - - - - - B .
impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered - - - - = - =
good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - = - .
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit - - - B - - .
impaired
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts - - . .
(Disputed + Undisputed)
31 March 2021 Current
Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts
Particulars Dues Not Due | Less than 6 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 More than Total
months - 1 year years years 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered - - 0.83 - - - - 0.83
good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables -which have - - - - = -
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit - - - - - = = .
impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivabtes-considered - - - - - = 5
good
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - - . - -
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit - - - - < -
impaired
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts - - - - - - -
(Disputed + Undisputed)
Footnote i : Include due from following Companies in which the Company is having common directors:
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
31 march 2022 31 March 2021 31 march 2022 31 March 2021
Palred Electronics Private Limited + - - 0.83
Palred Technology Services Private Limited - - 0.00
- - - 0.83
As at Asat

8 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
On current accounts
Cash on hand

9 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent

Balance in unpaid dividend account
Balance in unpaid capital reduction account

In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months butless than 12 months from balance sheet date

Note:

31 march 2022

31 March 2021

1.81 3.79
0.02 0.22

1.83 4.01

As at As at

31 march 2022 31 March 2021
- 34,03
13.60 13.60
2,354.41 1,400.00
2,368.01 1,447.63

The Subsidiary entities (Palred Electronics Private Limited and Palred Technology Services Private Limited) taken the over draft facilities from ICICI Bank against the Fixed deposits.

10 Other financial assets

Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Accrued income

11 Other current assets
Advance recoverable
Prepaid expenses
Total

As at As at
31 march 2022 31 March 2021
11.18 116.45
- 11.15
11.18 127.60
As at As at
31 march 2022 31 March 2021
0.66 1.96
- 0.05
0.66 2.01




Palred Technologles Limited

Summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Alt amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

12 Share capital

Equity shares As at 11 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Number of shares Ameurt Number of shares Amount
Authorized
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 2,80,38,800 2803.88 2,B0,38,800 2R03.88
14% Preference Shares of Rs.100 each 6,96,120 696.12 6,96,120 696.12
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 97,32,566 973.26 97,32,566 973.26
Taotal 97,32,566 973.26 97,32,566 973.26

For the periad ended
31 March 2022

For the period ended

{a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding 31 March 2021

at the beginning and at the and of the year

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 97,32,566 973.26 97,32,566 973.26
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 97,32,566 973.26 97,32,566 973.26

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. Dividend if any deciared s payable in Indian Rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Arnual General Meeting,
In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{ €) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company

Name of the equity shareholder As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Number % holding Number % hotding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Stuthi Reddy 10,00,000 10.27% 10,00,000 10.27%
Supriya Reddy Palem 10,00,000 10.27% 10,00,000 10.27%
Sanhita Reddy 10,00,000 10.27% 10,00,000 10.27%
Passage to India Master Fund Limited 7,01,586 7.21% 7,01,586 7.21%
Ashish Dhawan 6,78,189 6.97% 6,78,189 6.97%
Palem Srikanth Reddy 6,02,261 6.19% 6,02,261 6.19%
Note: Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy passed away during the financial year 2020-21. The process of Share Transfer to his nominee, Mrs. Supriya Reddy Palem is yet to complete.
Details of Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 1 As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
S. No Promoter name No. OF % of total shares % Change during the No. Of Shares % of total shares % Change during
Shares year the year

1 Palem Srikanth Reddy 6,02,261 6.19% - 6,02,261 6.19%

2 Stuthi Reddy 10,00,000 10.27% - 10,00,000 10.27%

3 | Supriya Reddy Palem 10,00,000 10.27% - 10,00,000 10.27% -

4 | Sanhita Reddy 10,00,000 10.27% = 10,00,000 10.27% -

5 | Soujanya Reddy Parvatha 46,619 0.48% 0 46,619 0.48% =

[] P Soujanya Reddy . 25,000 0.26% - 25,000 0.26%

7 Palem Srinivas Reddy 2,600 0.03% - 2,600 0.03% -

] i Reddy 600 0.01% - 600 0.01% -
Total 36,77,080 37.78% - 36,77,080 37.78% =

(d) No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the current year end.

(e) Capital reduction of equity shares during 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date
Subsequent to the approval of the High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad for the State of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh for reduction of D% of the paid up equity share capital during the
financial year ended 3t March 2016, the Company has returned an amount of Rs. 16.50 at a premium of Rs. 11.50 per share and cancelled extinguished 60% of the equity shares of the Company of
face value of Rs. 5 each in July 2015. After reduction, the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of Rs. 1951.85 Lakhs consisting of Rs. 390.37 Lakhs equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully
paid-up was reduced to Rs. 780.74 Lakhs consisting of Rs. 1,56.15 Lakhs equity shares of Rs. 5 each.

Number of shares
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2022

Aggregate number of capital reduction of equity shares 2,34,22,182
13 Other equity
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Reserves and surplus

Capital Reserve 142.80 142.80
Securities premium 6,720.30 6,720.30
General reserve 1,325.24 1,325.24
Retained earnings (6,166.36) {6,567.18)
Maney Received Against share warrants* 800.00 -
Total reserves and surplus 2,821.98 1,621.16

* the Company held Extraordinary General Meeting on 20 November 2021 in which it proposed to create, offer, issue and allot to Mathew Cyriac, in one or more tranches, up to 25,00,000 (Twenty
Five Lakhs) convertible warrants of the Company having a face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Dnly) each, at an issue price of Rs.128/- per warrant (including a premium of Rs. 11B per warrant)
determined as on the Relevant Date in accardance with Regulation 164{1) of the ICDR Regulations and applicable laws, for an aggregate consideration not exceeding Rs.32,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Thirty-Two Crores only) to Non-Promoters , by way of a preferential allotment and in such manner and an such other terms and conditions, as the Board may, in its absolute discretion, think fit,
Further, the Company allotted the Share warrants to the Allottee, Mr. Mathew Cyriac in the Board Meeting held as on 19th January, 2022 and received 25% of the total Issue Price of Rs.
32,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Two Crores only) i.e. Rs.8,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eight Crores only) as on 18th January, 2022.
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Palred Technologies Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan 2.90) (3.26)
Total other comprehensive income (2.90) {3.26)
Total Other equity 2,819.08 1,617.90

Nature and Purpose of reserve:

. Capital Reserve

The reserve represents creation of capital reserve pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation. The Company uses capital reserve for transactions in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

ii. Securities Premium Account
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares fs recognised in securities premium. In case of equity-settled share based payment transactions, the difference between fair value
on grant date and face value of share is d as securities pi This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

General reserve
General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

iv. Remeasurement of defined benefit plan
The reserve represents the remeasurement gains/(losses) arising from the actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan of the Company. The remeasurement gains/ (losses) are recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under this reserve within equity. The amounts recognized under this reserve are not reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

14 Provisfons
Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current
Gratuity {refer note (a)) 14.92 13.49
14.92 13.49
Current
Gratuity (refer note (a)) 0.38 0.33
0.38 0.33
(a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in Indfa as per the Payment of the Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a periad of five years are eligible for gratuity.
The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionally 15 days salary multiplied for the number of the years of
service. The gratuity plan is unfunded. The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan are set out below.

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
i. Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 13.82 13.03
Service cost 1.22 2.26
Interest cost 0.95 0.79
Actuarial (gain) / loss (0.38) (0.22)
Settlements {0.34) (2.04)
Benefits paid . -
Projected beneflt cbligation at the end of the year 15.30 13,82
ii. E ized in the of profit and lass
Service cost 1.22 2.26
Interest cost 0.95 a.79
Expected returns on plan assets - -
Net gratuity costs 2.15 3.05
iii. Expense recognized in OCl
Recognized net actuarial (gain}/ loss (0.36) (0.22)
jv. Key actuarial assumptions
Financial assumptions
Discount rate 6.98% 6.68%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%
Demographic assumptions For Service 4 years and below 5%

For Service 5 years and above 2%
Mortality rate as per Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 table

v. Sensitlvity Analysis
Projected defined benefit obligation
Delta effect of +1% change in discount rate 15.30 {1.44)
Delta effect of -1% change in discount rate (1.49) 1.68
Delta effect of -1% change in discount rate 1.72 0.90
Delta effect of ~1% change in salary escalation rate (0.86) (0.85)
vi. Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation
1 year 0.38 0.33
2t0 5 years 1.39 1.55
6 to 10 years 14,30 2.55
More than 10 years 18.87 29.15

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the discount rate and salary escalation rate. The calculation of the net defined benefit liability is
sensitive to these assumptions. Sensitivity to these factors s disclosed above.

15 Other financial liabilities e m ek T
Unpaid dividends - 34.03
Unclaimed capital reduction 13.60 13.60
Other Payables 35.96 18.67
Total other financial liabilities 49.56_ 66.30

e As at As at

16  Other current liabilities 31 March 2022 31 March 2024
Statutory dues payable 1.81 1.96
Balances with government authorities 1147 -

Total other current liabilities 2.98 1.96




Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Revenue from operations

Sale of Services:

E commerce fulfilment charges
Management fees

Total revenue from operations

Other income

Interest Income

Dividend From Mutual Funds
Miscellaneous income

Total other income

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances
Contribution to Provident Fund

Gratuity expenses (Refer note 14)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs
Interest Expense on lease liability

Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of ROU Assets

Other expenses

Rates and taxes

Office expenses

Communication, broadband and internet expenses
Insurance

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional charges*
Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note i)
Sitting Fees

Hosting Expenses

Advertisement

Miscellaneous expenses

Note i : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of Goods and service tax)

As auditor:

Statutory audit
Reimbursement of expenses
Total

Exceptional items

Impairment Cost

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

- 17.03
150.00 133.99
150.00 151.02

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

70.02 78.98
0.20 1.27
0.92

70.22 81.17

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

97.65 87.79
1.21 1.52
217 3.05
0.41 1.05

101.44 93.41

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

1.42

0.31

1.42

0.31

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

1.83 2.49
7.14 6.97
8.97 9.46

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

25.81 13.84
13.72 15.15
0.41 0.55
0.12 0.08
1.38 1.19
16.39 13.22
14.00 14.00
2.35 0.30
24,48 18.91
0.99 10.26
0.42 0.21
100.07 87.71

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

14.00

14.00

14.00

14.00

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

(392.51)

475.14

(392.51)

. 475.14
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Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

24 Earnings per equity share (EPES)

Basic earnings /(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings /(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to equity holders (after adjusting for interest on the convertible
preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued
on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Loss attributable to equity holders 400.83 (433.85)
Weighted average number of equity shares 97,32,566 97,32,566
Adjusted number of shares for Dilutive EPS 97,85,775 97,32,566
Basic earnings/(loss) per share {INR) 4.12 (4.46)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (INR) 4.10 (4.46)

25 Fair value measurements
(i) Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three
levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on abservable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(ii) Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2

Financial assets
Current Investments - - 22.95 -

There are no transfers between levels during the year. The Company's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the
reporting period.

(iif) Financial instruments by category

For amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost
Financial Assets
Current Investments - - 22,95
Trade receivables - - - 0.83
Cash and cash equivalents - 1.83 - 4.01
Other Bank balances - 2,368.01 - 1,447.63
Other financial assets - 11.18 - 127.60
Total financial assets - 2,381.02 22.95 - 1,580.07
Financial liabilities
lease liability - 14.85 - -
Other financial liabilities - 49.56 - 66.30
Total financial liabilities - 64.41 - - 66.30

iv. The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The

Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The
Company also holds FVTPL investments.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents are considered ta be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. Difference
between carrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financial assets, other financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost is not significant in
each of the years presented. For all other amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

For financial assets measured at fair values, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

26 Financial instruments risk management

The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include market risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company and seek to, where appropriate, minimize
potential impact of the risk and to control and monitor such risks. There has been no change to the Company’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

The following sections provide details regarding the Company’s exposure to the financial risks associated with financial instruments held in the ordinary course of business
and the objectives, policies and processes for management of these risks:
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Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs untess otherwise stated)
A. Market risk:
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may results from adverse changes in market rates (such as interest rates) or in the
price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial
instruments. The Company's exposure to market risk is a function of investing activities.

B. Credit risk
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid mutual fund units and certificate's of deposit which are funds
deposited at a bank for a specified time period. None of the Company's cash equivalents, including term deposits (i.e. certificates of deposits) were past due or impaired
as at the reporting periods.

C. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far
as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses
or risk to the Company’s reputation.
The Company’s principle sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and current investments. The Company believes that the warking capital is sufficient to meet
its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and maintains adequate source of funding. The
Company had following working capital at the end of the reporting year.

As at As at
Particulars 31 march 2022 31 March 2021
Current Assets 2,381.68 1,605.03
Current liabilities 60.04 68.59
Working Capital 2,321.64 1,536.44

27 Capital risk management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will continue as going concern while maximising the return to shareholders. The Company manages its capital structure
and make adjustment in light of changes in business condition. The overall strategy remains unchanged as compared to last year, There is no debt in the Company as on
the reporting dates presented and accordingly, gearing ratio is nil as at various reporting dates.

28 Related Party disclosures

(a) Names of the related parties and nature of relationship

Names of related parties Country Nature of relationship

Palred Electronics Private Limited-Subsidiary India Subsidiary

Palred Retail Private Limited-Subsidiary India Subsidiary

Palred Technology Services Private Limited India Subsidiary

Mr. Palem Srikar Reddy Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Pinekalapati Harish Naidu, CFO Key Managerial Personnel

Mrs. Shruti Rege, Company Secretary Key Managerial Personnel

Ms. Supriya Reddy Key Managerial Personnel

Ms, Stuthi Reddy Relative of Key Managerial Personnel
(b) Transactions with related parties:

Related Party Transaction For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Palred Electronics Private Limited Ecom Fulfilment Services - 0.39
Palred Retail Private Limited Ecom Fulfilment Services o 16.61
Palred Technology Services Private Limited Ecom Fulfilment Services 0.04 0.04
Palred Electronics Private Limited Corporate guarantee 3000.00 3000.00
Palred Electronics Private Limited Pledge of fixed deposits against working capital limits 2129.81 855.00
Palred Technology Services Private Limited Pledge of fixed deposits against working capital limits 224.60 380.00
Palred Electronics Private Limited Management Fee 150.00 112.24
Palred Retail Private Limited Management Fee = 8.28
Palred Technology Services Private Limited Management Fee 13.46
Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy Remuneration* 10.00
Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy Reimbursement of expenses - 0.82
Mr. Pinekalapati Harish Naidu Salaries including bonuses 35.00 27.92
Mr. Murthy MVLN Reimbursement of expenses - 6.40
Mr. Pinekalapati Harish Naidu Reimbursement of expenses 0.19 0.02
Ms. Supriya Reddy Salaries including bonuses 15.00 10.00
Ms. Supriya Reddy Reimbursement of expenses 1.16 2.22
Mrs. Shruti Rege Salaries including bonuses 8.63 6.43
Ms. Stuthi Reddy Rent 8.00 7.00
*Remuneration not include post employment benefits and other long term employee benefit expenditure which are computed for Company as a whole, s
e
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Palred Technologies Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
{All amounts are in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

( ) Balances receivable/(payables) As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Palred Electronics Private Limited (7.00) 0.83
Palred Technology Services Private Limited - 0.00
Ms. Stuthi Reddy - -0.74
29 Contingent liabilities and pending litigations As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Claim against company not acknowledged as debt - (Income Tax)
Assessment year 2006-07 onwards - refer note below 602.00 602.00

Note;

Pursuant to the income tax assessment for the financial year 2006-07 onwards, the Company had received various demands from the income tax autharities in relation to
the inadmissibility of certain expenditure in accordance with the provisions of the income tax law and compliances with the arm's length guidelines in relation to
international transactions with associated enterprises. The management, on the basis of its internal assessment of the facts of the case, the underlying nature of
transactions, the history of judgements made by the various appellate authorities and the necessary advise received from the independent expert engaged in this regard,
is of the view that the probability of the case being settled against the Company is remote and accordingly do not foresee any adjustment to the financial statements in
this regard.

30 Sesment reporting
The operations of the company are predominantly related to the trading in electronic products, fashion accessories and providing related services. As such there is only
one primary reportable segment as per IND AS 108 'Operating Segments".

31 Details of Benami Property held
The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property.

32 i. Relationship with Struck off Companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.
ii. The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

33 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

34 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
(i) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:
{a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b)provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii)aThe Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b)provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

35 The standalone financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 16 May 2022.
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Palred Technologies Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except for share data unless otherwise stated)

37 Undisclosed income

The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year (previous year) in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

38 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

39 The Code on Social Security 2020
The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has received Presidential
assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft
rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for
quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued.
The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes
effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

40 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to confirm presentation as per Ind AS and as required by Schedule Hl of the Act.

As per our report of even date
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Palred Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Palred Technologies Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2022, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022, of
consolidated loss and the consolidated total other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the consolidated financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI”), and the relevant provisions of the Act and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Head Office: 602, Floor 6, Raheja Titanium, Western Express Highway, Geetanjali Railway Colony, Ram Nagar, Goregaon (E), Mumbai 400063, INDIA, Tel: +91 22 6831 1600
Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Goa | Gurugram | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | Pune www.mska.in



In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Other Matter
a. We did not audit financial statements of three subsidiaries whose financial information reflects
total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 102.38 lacs as at March 31, 2022, total
revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 193.86 lacs, total net loss and other
comprehensive loss (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 63.91 lacs for the year ended on
that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. This financial information are
unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of



these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as
it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on such unaudited financial information. In
our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us by the management, this
information is not material to the group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and
regulatory requirements below, are not modified in respect of above matter with respect to our
reliance on the financial information certified by the management.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

a.

. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group
companies are disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

fi. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies.

iv. The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have

\\’



been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that such parties
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures respectively that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on
the date of this audit report, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

V. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

2. As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to
information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Group to its directors is
within the limits laid prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the CARO reports
issued by us for the Company and on consideration of CARO reports of subsidiaries included in
the consolidated financial statements of the Company to which reporting under CARO is
applicable, we report that there are no Qualifications/adverse remarks.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrgtion No. 105

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 22214198AJBCFK7651

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PALRED TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit ih order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates
and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates
and jointly controlled entities to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors,
such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.



We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2022 (current year) and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

For M S K A & Associate
Chartered Accountants X‘o
S047W

ICAl Firm Registration N%
~\ W
. I\ ~
N

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.214198
UDIN: 22214198AJBCFK7651

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16™" May, 2022



ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PALRED TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Palred Technologies Limited on the
consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of Palred Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”)
and its three subsidiary companies as of that date.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control with reference to consolidated
financial statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, its associate
companies and jointly controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible
for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference
to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the respective companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, its associate companies and jointly
controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on

)



the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, its associate
companies and jointly controlled companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, inctuding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements insofar as it relates to
three subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 047W

Amit Kumar A’garwal
Partner

Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 22214198AJBCFK7651

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 16" May, 2022



Palred Technologies Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(Alt amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right of Use Asset

Intangible assets

Financial assets

Other financial assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
QOther financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Equity attributable to owners
Non Controlling Interest
Total Equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Lease Liabilities

Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Total nan-current liabilities

Current ifabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
i)total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
fijtotal outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprise and small
enterprise
Lease liability
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Total labilities

Total equity and liabilities

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registgation No. ] 050

Membership No: 214198

Place: Hyderabad

Date: May 16, 2022 Date
/
|
\
Rins

Supriya Re
Chairperson & Managin
DIN:00055870

Place: Hyderabad
: May 16, 2022

4 (@)

20
4(b)

1-45

statements.

5 AN~
alapati Harish Naidu

Chief Finance Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

41.09 36.62
188.82 213.20
5.58 6.27
66.51 34.32
330.52 342.58
632.52 632.99
2,181.09 1,483.13
- 22.95
1,376.24 1,715.11
27.75 85.05
2,377.13 1,740.46
39.29 163.40
927.17 906.06
6,928.67 6,116.16
7,561.19 6,749.15
973.26 973.26
2,608.47 1,957.16
3,581.73 2,930.42
250.99 245.91
3,832.72 3,176.33
168.35 178.21
25.00 30.00
48.77 41.44
242.12 249.65
3,147.38 2,786.71
56.38 180.84
39.57 45.78
223.00 291.52
18.41 17.47
1.61 0.85
3,486.35 3,323.17
3,728.47 3,572.82
7,561.19 6,749.15

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Palred Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200TG1999PLCO33131

S.Vijaya Saradhi
Director
DIN: 03089889

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022

A
Shruti Rege
Company Secretary

Membership No: A43523

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022



Palred Technologles Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional items
Exceptional items
Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of PTL
Non-controlling interests

Profit is attributable to:
Owners of PTL
Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income is attributable to:

Owners of PTL
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per equity share
Basic earnings per equity share
Diluted earnings per equity share

See accompanying nates to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended

For the year ended

Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

22 12,758.77 11,700.22
23 103.91 177.94
12,862.68 11,878.16

9,824.09 8,476.71

24 (642.89) (253.96)
25 835.25 688.61
26 323.50 273.69
27 62.70 71.36
28 2,626.40 2,279.71
13,029.05 11,536.12

(166.37) 342,04

(166.37) 342.04

7.82 7.76

7.82 7.76

1.47 (5.84)
1.47 (5.84)

9.29 1.92

(157.08) 343.96

(171.43) 251.35

5.06 90.69

(164.04) 253.60

6.95 90.36

7.39 2.25
1.89 (0.33)

(1.76) 2.58

(1.76) 2.58

1-45

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Rggistratian No.: J/O 4
\x
- b -

mit Kumar Agarwa
Partner
Membership No: 214198

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Palred Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200TG1999PLCO33131

Supriya He
Chairperson & Mal
DIN:00055870

Place: Hyderabad
: May 16, 2022
t
N,
Pinekalapati Harish Naidu

Chief Finance Officer

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022

=0
* 5.Vijaya Saradhi
| Director

I DIN: 03089889

()

| Place: Hyderabad
| Date: May 16, 2022

A -
Shruti Rege
1 Company Secretary

+ Membership No: A43523

| Place: Hyderabad
| Date: May 16, 2022



Palred Technologies Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31,

(All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Dividend on Mutual Fund
Finance cost
Interest income
Unrealised Forex Gain, net
Balances written off
Operating loss before working capital changes

Changes in working capital

(Decrease)/ increase in trade payables
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories

Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables
(Decrease)/ increase in other current liabilities
(Decrease)/ increase in non-current liabilities
(Decrease)/ increase in provisions

Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities
Decrease/ (increase) in other financial assets
Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets
Cash generated used in operations

Taxes paid

Net cash flows used in operating activities (A)

Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Net proceeds from mutual funds

Dividend income from mutual funds

Net proceeds from fixed deposits

Interest received

Net cash flow from investing activities (B)

Cash flow from Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital
Proceeds from short-term borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effect on exchange rates
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
Balances with banks

On current accounts
Cash on hand
Fixed Deposit

Total cash and bank balances at end of the year

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

2022

For the
year ended
March 31, 2022

For the
year ended
March 31, 2021

(166.37) 342,04
62.70 71.36
(0.20) (1.27)

323.50 273.69

(76.66) {91.97)
34.72 21.14
1.04 {15.09)

178.73 599,90

(124.46) (93.71)

(697.96) (303.46)

338.87 (1,164.91)

0.96 (4.68)
1.32 119.60
0.76 (2.46)
(68.52) -
91.93 (129.06)
@1.11) (338.76)
(299.48) (1,317.54)
{22.25) (11.72)
{321.73) (1,329.26)
(14.06) {11.49)
22.95 5.73
0.20 1.27
(636.67) (284.33)
181.93 :

(445.66) (288.82)

800.00 .

360.66 1,577.30

(415.85) (249.45)

744.81 1,327.85

(22.58) (290.23)
85.05 196.43
(34.72) (21.15)
27.75 85.05
23.30 83.34
1.34 1.71
.1 -
27.75 85.05

1-45

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Regg tratiT Np.:10504W
\

-

Amit Kumbr Agafival
Partner
Membership No: 214198

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Palred Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200TG1999PLC033131

Supriy
Chairperson & Mai
DIN:00055870

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022
f AN

1
\'imkalaé'ﬁ&hﬂsﬁgﬁ Naidu
Chief Finance Officer -

Place: Hyderabad

Date: May 16, 2022 |

ng director

S.Vijaya &
Director
DIN: 03089889

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022

Ay

Shruti Rege
Company Secretary
Membership No: A43523

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022



7207 ‘91 Aew :aleq
PeqesspAy 133¢id Ir || Q20T 9} Aew ta1eq
\ peqeiapAH :ade)d

£Z5EPY ON diysIaquisgy

Alejaudasg >:R.Eow . ] ..‘_mu_to adueuld JaIYD
a8ay pnays ~“TpIeN YsHeH Bedeje;
s 7

N J \
7707 ‘91 Arw :a3eq 7707 ‘91 Aew 330 7707 ‘91 Aew :a3eq
peqelapAH :ade)d peqelspAy :ade)d peqeiapAy :9deyy
688680€0 NI 0/8GS000:NId 861417 10N diysiaquiaw
1032310 Jopalp euey g uosiadiey) } Jaulleq
ypeles efiefiA°S 3y eApdns Jemiedy feufny i

LELEEDDTd6661DL00ZTLT NID

pajw] saidojouysa] paljed

10 54010311 JO pJeog ay) JO Jeysq uo pue J04 S9]e|20S5Y B YISW 104
a1ep usAs Jo Hodas uno Jad sy

o \

ﬂ?rm —Z :
L A AV

} T “MLyos01t-oN uopensSey w4

| | SJURIUNOIDY paJaliey)

"§JUBWIAL]S Jejoueuly pajepljosuaY ay) Jo Jed Jeddajul ue ate sajou SulAuedwodde ay)

sjuawajels
Ela JeLIuRULy P1EPLIOSUOD 2y] 03 $3l0u ButAuedwodde 225
S7°658°T 66°0SZ 1¥'809‘C 56°T (€z'8) (22v25°S) £0°STE’} £L°0CL°9 £9°Zk1 TZOZ ‘LE Y24ew Je se aduejeq
vrELs [4484%] ¥ ELs sjuawasnipe 19yjQ
6T°6 6T°6 ) 8L (1NQ) awoduL 3AIsuaya1dwod J1aylo
(SE°991) 80°S (ep°11) (Ep"LLL) 1Rk ay) 10§ 5507 319N
90'€07°C 16°SHT 91°£56°L gL (90°91) (19°91Z'9) $T°GTE} 0£°0ZLY 08°Z¥L 1Z0Z ‘L€ YoJeW Je se sduejeg
(15°'9) (15°5) (16°6) sjuawisnipe JayiQ
(zo'v1) (zo'vL) #8'G (99°61) (120) awodu) ansuayaidwod 1ay30
rO'ZrE 69°06 1814 GE'LGT Jeak ay) 10j 507 38N
- - - (IDN) s1s2.133u} Buyjo3u0)-uoN 03 uolINgLIUo)
- - - Auejp|sqns ul 359133u) JeUO3IPpe JO UoLHSINDbIY
- = saseys Aunba 3o anssj
96°088°L 41T ¥E'STLL (9¢'p) 08'¢ (S°T97‘9) ¥Z'SZE'L 0£°07L°9 08°Zvl 0Z0Z ‘L€ YaJew je se aduejeg
juased sue|d Jysuaq
dAlasal uonje|suely wniwaid
— 5353193u} JO si1dumo pauyjap jo #ousLIns uSjal0y sBujules paujelay 9Alasal jelauln faunoas SAlasaYy Jeden
Suijjosjuod uoN 031 3)qeINgLIe Juawainsesway
|ejoL awodu) aapsusyaldwo) 1ayio snjdins pue saAlasay
A3nba 12430 (g)
9T°€L6 996°ZE L6 9Z°€L6 996°TE°26 Buso)
- - - - Jeak ay) Suunp anss| :ppy
9T°€L6 995°2€°26 9T°¢L6 995°7£°£6 Suwado
pred ANy pue paquasqns ‘pansst yoea g YN} Jo saleys AJnba
junowy saleys Jo "oN Junowy saJeys jo ‘oN
1207 “L€ Yorew 2707 ‘L€ Yosew |eadeo ateys Anb3 (v)
jesy jesy

(pa1els 351MIAYI0 SS3)UN ‘SyyET UL Junowe 1)y)
ZZ0T ‘L€ Yatew papua Jeak ay) Joy Ajinba uj safueyd jo juawialels pajepjjosuosy

panw|] sajfojouyday paljed



Palred Technologies Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Al amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate Information
The Consolidated financial statements of "Palred Technologies Limited" ("the Company" or "Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (Collectively referred to as "Group") are
for the year ended March 31, 2022. The Company is a public company incorporated and domiciled in India and incorporated in accordance with the provisions of the
erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The Company's registered office is at 8-2-703/2/B/,Plot No: 2,Road No.12,Banjara Hills,Hyderabad, Telangana-500 034. Its shares are listed
on two recognised stock exchanges of India, the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. The Group is primarily engaged into trading in mabiles,
electronic products, fashion accessories and providing related services.

The Board of Directors approved the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 and authorised for issue on May 16, 2022,

2 Basis of preparation

Compliance with Ind AS
The consolidated financial statements of the Company along with its subsidiaries (together referred to as "Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared for the
Group as a going concern on the basis of relevant IND AS that are effective at the Company's annual reporting date March 31, 2022.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost canvention on accrual basis, except for the following material items in the Balance
sheet:

i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured either at fair value; and

ii) Net defined assets/ {Liability) are measured at fair value of plan assets, less present value of defined benefit obligations.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Group’s exposed, or
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Especially, the Group
controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

i. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

ii. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

iii. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether has power over an investee, including:

i. The contractual agreement with the other voting holders of the investee

ii. Rights arising from other contractual agreements.

iii. The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

iv. The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders,

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of
the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group’s accaunting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Parent Company, i.e., year ended
on March 31, 2022. When the end of the reporting period of the Parent Company is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation
purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the Parent Company to enable the Parent Company to consolidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation praocedure:
i. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent Company with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpase, income
and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consotidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

ii. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations
policy explains how to account for any related goodwill or capital reserve.

ifi. Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group (profits or
losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate
an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the
elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses cantrol over a subsidiary,
it:
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(i)

=Berecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

eBerecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

*Berecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

=Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

*Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

*Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

eReclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

The following subsidiaries have been considered for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Percentage holding/ interest %

Name of the Company Country Relationship As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31,
2021

Palred Electronics Private Limited (‘PEP’) (formerly . C

known as Palred Online Technologies Private Limited) India Subsidiary 78.17% 78.17%
Palred Retails Private Limited (PRP) India Subsidiary 97.81% 97.81%
Palred Technology Services Private Limited (‘PTS") India Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00%
Palred Online Technologies Limited (‘POT’) Hong Kong Subsidiary of PEP 100.00% 100.00%
Palred Technology Shenzhen Company Ltd China Subsidiary of POT 100.00% 100.00%
Palred Online Bilism Teknoljileri Ticaret Anonim Sirketi Turkey Subsidiary of PEP 100.00% 100.00%

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management to make judgements, estimate and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
financial statements and reported amount of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the
estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which changes are made and in any future periods effected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

i. Note (c ) and (d) — Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and ather intangible assets;
ii. Note (e} — Impairment;

iii. Note (h) — Financial instruments;

iv. Note (1) — Employee benefits;

v. Note (0) — Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets; and

vi. Note (n) — Income taxes

Summary of significant accounting policies
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies and measurement basis summarized below.

Functional Currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (‘INR’) which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Group. All financial
information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Group's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division Il-
Ind AS Schedule Il to the Act. The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification,

An asset is classified as current when it is:

i. Expected to be realised or intended to be sald or consumed in normal operating cycle.,

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

iii. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current when:

i. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

iii. It is due to be settted within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-Current assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities including deferred tax assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current.
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C.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises
purchase price, taxes {other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable
cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. If significant parts of an item of PPE have different
useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (Major components) of PPE.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances. Capital Work-in-
progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/ under development as at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation on property, pant and equipment is calculated on pro-rata basis on written down value method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by
management. The useful life is as follows:

Asset Useful life (in years)
Leasehold improvement* Lease period

Plant & Machinery 10 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Computers:

-Servers 6 years

-End user devices such as, desktops, laptops etc. 3 years

Depreciation on additions/ disposals is provided on pro-rata basis i.e. from/ up to the date on which asset is ready for use/ disposed-off.

The useful lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events. The residual values are not more than 5% of the
original cost of the assets. The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year- end and adjusted retrospectively, if
appropriate.

Intangible assets

Other intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment. These are derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the
recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
when the assets are disposed off.

Intangible assets are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The other intangible assets comprise of computer software expenditure and are amortized over a period of three years. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

Impairment

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups of assets.

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset or its cash generating unit is lower than its
carrying amount. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed
and reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been previously recognised.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. For all other
financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the assets.
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f.

Leases:

The Group has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under Ind AS 17,

Group as a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: -

i. Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

ii. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

iii. Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
iv. The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from
a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if group
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of use asset, or is recorded in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans
and borrowings’ in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of real estate properties that have a lease term of 12 months.
The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Comparative Information under Ind AS 17

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership as finance leases. When this
was the case, the leased assets were measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Minimum lease payments were the payments over the lease term that the lessee was required to make, excluding any contingent rent,

Subsequently, the assets were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognised in the Group’s statement of financial position. Payments made under
operating leases were recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognised as an integral part
of the total lease expense, aver the term of the lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset to the
Group. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial
liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the tiability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant pericdic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Land under perpetual lease for is accounted as finance lease which is recognised at upfront premium paid for the lease and the present value of the lease rent
obligation. The corresponding liability is recognised as a finance lease obligation. Land under non-perpetual lease is treated as operating lease.

Operating lease payments for land are recognised as prepayments and amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals, if any,
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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g. Inventories:
Inventories comprise of stock-in-trade and packing materials
Stock-in-trade are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost includes purchase price, import duties and other
taxes excluding taxes those are subsequently recoverable from the concerned authorities, freight inwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing such
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of inventories is determined using the weighted average cost method.

Packing material is carried at cost. Cost of packing material is determined using the weighted average cost method
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs to complete the sales.

The factors that the Group considers in determining the allowance for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable inventory include estimated life, planned
product discontinuances, price changes, ageing of inventory and introduction of campetitive new products, to the extent each of these factors impact the Group’s
business and markets. The Group considers all these factors and adjusts the inventory provision to reflect its actual experience on a periodic basis.

h. Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition and measurement
Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value and, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

i. amortised cost;

ii. fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) - debt investment;

ifi. FVTOCI - equity investment; or

iv. FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

Amortised cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

i. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
Other Income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

FVTQCI - debt investment
A debt investment is measured at FYTOC! if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
i. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in
the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
statement of profit or loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit
or loss. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity investment
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair
value in OCl (designated as FYTOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by- investment basis.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, including foreign exchange gain or loss and
excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or lass, even on sale of investment. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial
recoghition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at
FVTPL if daing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a
derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cast using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in
statement of profit or loss,

De-recognition

Financial assets

A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Group has transferred its'rights to receive cash '
flows from the asset. f |
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Financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts and interest rate risk exposures to hedge its risk associated with foreign
currency fluctuations and changes in interest rates. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value and subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured
at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in statement of profit or loss, since the Group’s hedging instruments did not qualify for hedge
accounting in accordance with the Ind-AS 39. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value
is negative.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less that
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with financial institutions, other short - term, highly tiquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to knawn amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Group recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Group when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer
at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

i.  Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Group at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting period are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary
items which are carried at fair value or any other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

j. Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries
The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries at cost in the separate financial statements in accordance with the
option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’,

The Company regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity {the investee), determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the
investee. The Company controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Thus, the Company controls an investee if and only if it has all the following:

(a) power over the investee;
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns.

Investments are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposat of investment, the difference between its carrying
amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.

k. Revenue recognition

The Group has adopted Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with customers, using modified retrospective application method with effect from April 1, 2018 and
accordingly these consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 115. The
application of Ind AS 115 did not have any significant impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related items in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group as the Group s yet to identify the business opportunities in the areas of IT Solutions and services.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services ta customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Other income - Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable. For all debt instruments measured at
amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Other income - Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally, when shareholders approve the dividend.
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Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as and when the services are received from the employees entitling them to
the contributions.

Defined benefit plan
The liability in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporting period. The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan as a liability in its balance sheet. Gains or losses through

remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent
periods. The effect of any plan amendments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as Salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on an undiscounted and accrual basis during the period when
the employee renders service of the benefit.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cots consists of interest, ancillary costs and other costs in cannection with the borrowing of funds and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and/or qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of the cost of such assets are ready for their intended use. Other
borrowing costs are charged to the statements of profit and loss.

Taxes

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit or loss consists of current and deferred tax except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OC| or directly
in equity, in which case it is recognised in OCl or directly in equity respectively.

Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in accordance with the
Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICD5) enacted in India by using tax rates and the tax laws that are enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements. Deferred tax is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate ta income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Group.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised. Withholding tax arising out of payment of dividends to shareholders under the Indian Income tax regulations is not considered as tax expense for the
Group and all such taxes are recognised in the statement of changes in equity as part of the associated dividend payment.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is reasonably certain that the Group will pay normal income tax during
the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no
longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

As at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the Group has deferred tax asset on account of unabsorbed business loss, unabsorbed tax depreciation and other items,
which have not been recognized on the grounds of prudence. Consequently, there is no deferred tax asset or liability recorded in the consolidated financial
statements as at reporting periods presented.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made

at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their
present values, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent Liability is disclosed for:
i. Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

ii. Present obligatians arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognized.

Cash flow statement

The Cash flow statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method. Cash flow statement present the cash flows by operating, financing and investing activities of the
Company. Operating cash flows are arrived by adjusting profit or loss before tax for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of
past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

Exceptional Items

Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a full understanding of the Group’s financial
performance. Items which may be considered exceptional are significant restructuring charges, gains or losses on disposal of investments in subsidiaries;
impairment losses/write down in value of investment in subsidiaries, significant disposal of fixed assets etc.



Palred Technologies Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2022
{All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

r.

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

Standards, not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been
applicable from April 1, 2022.

Standards that became effective during the year

There are no new Standards that became effective during the year. The group has applied certain amendments that became effective during the year which are
discussed below:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered rate {IBOR) is replaced with an alternative
nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR).

The amendments include the following practical expedients:

-A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating
interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest

-Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued
-Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk
component

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group. The group intends to use the practical expedients in future periods as
and when it become applicable.

Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework under Ind AS

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore, this does not form part of a set of standards pronounced by the
standard-setters. While, the Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for formulating the standards, it has relevance to the preparers in certain
situations such as to develop consistent accounting policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice of accounting policy, and to assist
all parties to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Ind AS .includes amendment of the footnote to the
definition of an equity instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added for definition of liability i.e. definition of liability is not revised on
account of revision of definition in conceptual framewark in case of Ind AS 37 - Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS cansequential to Conceptual Framewark under Ind AS vide notification dated June 18, 2021, applicable for annuat
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly, the Conceptual Framework is applicable for preparers for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021.

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group.

Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 to update the candition for lessees to apply the relief to a
reduction in lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022 from 30 June 2021. The amendment appties to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2021. In case a lessee has not yet approved the consolidated financial statements for issue before the issuance of this amendment, then the same may be
applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020.

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group.

Ind AS 103: Business combination

The MCA clarified that for the purpose of this Ind AS, acquirers are required to apply the definition of asset and liability given in the framework for preparation and
presentation of consolidated financial statements with Indian Accounting standards rather than the conceptual framewark. Therefore, the acquirer does not
recognise those costs as part of applying the acquisition method. Instead, the acquirer recognises those costs in its post-combination consolidated financial
statements in accordance with other Ind AS.

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group,

Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28
In the definition of “Recoverable amount” the words “the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use” are replaced with “higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use”. The consequential amendments are made in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.

These amendments have no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the group.



Palred Technologies Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

Irr:-:ra::::lledn t Vehicles Fu::::::;:"d Office Equipment Computers lrfslte:ltl:tcizln Total
Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 17.53 0.90 96.88 24.74 81.60 5.25 226.90
Additions 0.05 - 3.03 1.78 4.41 1.33 10.60
Disposals/retirement
Balance as at March 31, 2021 17.58 0.90 99.91 26,52 86.01 6.58 237.50
Additions - - 3.30 3.95 5.08 7.21 19.55
Disposals/retirement
Balance as at March 31, 2022 17.58 0.90 103.21 30.47 91.09 13.79 257.05
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at March 31, 2020 17.47 0.79 67.97 20.05 75.21 3.68 185.19
Charge for the year - 0.03 7.65 2.27 5.05 0.69 15.69
Adjustments for disposals/retirement
Balance as at March 31, 2021 17.47 0.82 75.62 22.32 80.26 4.37 200.88
Charge for the year 0.06 0.02 6.47 2.03 5.22 1.29 15.08
Adjustments for disposals/retirement
Balance as at March 31, 2022 17.53 0.84 82.09 24.35 85.48 5.66 215.96
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2021 0.10 0.08 24.29 4.19 5.75 2.21 36.62
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2022 0.05 0.06 21.12 6.12 5.61 8.14 41.09
5 Intangible assets
::fTvTr:::r Goodwill Total
Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 71.71 228.88 300.59
Additions 2.57 2.57
Balance as at March 31, 2021 74.28 228.88 303.16
Additions 1.10 1.10
Balance as at March 31, 2022 75.38 228.88 304.26
Accumulated amartization
Balance as at March 31, 2020 64.29 228.88 293.17
Charge for the year 3.72 3.72
Balance as at March 31, 2021 68.01 228.88 296.89
Charge for the year 1.79 1.79
Balance as at March 31, 2022 69.80 228.88 298.68
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2021 6.27 - 6.27
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2022 5.58 - 5.58
leal
A J /1
\‘- ’J'
o -,
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 (a) Right of Use Asset as at March 31, 2022

Category of ROU
Particulars Asset Total
Buildings
Balance as at 1April 2021 188.11 188.11
Additions 42.86 42.86
Deletions -
Depreciation 42,16 42.16
Balance as at March 31, 2022 188.82 188.82

The aggregate depreciation expenses on ROU Assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

4 (b) Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2022

s As at

Particulars 31 March 2022
i) Non-Current 168.35
ii) Current 39.57
Total 207.92
The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2022 is as follows:

Particulars Amount INR
Balance as at April 1, 2021 223.99
Additions 42.86
Finance cost accrued during the year 19.54
Deletions 19.80
Payment of lease liabilities 58.69
Balance as at March 31, 2022 207.92




Palred Technologies Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
6 Other financial assets
Security deposits
Unsecured considered good
Related parties 66.51 33.03
Others - 1.29
66.51 34.32
As at As at
7 Other non-current assets March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advance tax (net of provision) 278.13 255.88
Balances with government authorities 52.39 86.70
Total other non-current other assets 330.52 342.58
As at As at
8 Inventories March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Stock-in-trade (at lower of cost or net realizable value) 2,083.90 1,441.00
Packing materials (at cost) 97.19 57.63
2,181.09 1,498.63
9 Investments As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current:
Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

Investments in mutual funds, non-trade, unquoted
2199.853 units (March 31, 2020: 2834.154) of Kotak Arbitrage Fund - - 22,95
Monthly Dividend Reinvestment plan

- 22.95
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Trade receivable Non-Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, 2021
2022 2021 2022
Unsecured
-Considered good - 1,376.24 1,715.11
- - 1,376.24 1,715.11

Further classified as:
Receivable from others - - 1,376.24 1,715.11

- - 1,376.24 1,715.11

Ageing of Trade Receivables
March 31,2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts

. Unbilled Total
Particulars N Neot Due 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 More than

Dues
Less than 6| _ 1 year years years 3 years
months

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - - 1,180.33 79.97 106.57 9.37 - 1,376.24
- considered good

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - v . = R N
-which have significant increase
in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - R - N
- credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade - - - - Z . . .
Receivables-considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - N N =
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - . . - s
credit impaired

Less: Allowance for bad and - - - - - - R
doubtful debts (Disputed +
Undisputed)

- - 1,180.33 79.97 106.57 9.37 - 1,376.24

March 31,2021

Particulars Unbilled |Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of Receipts

Dues Total
Less than 6 & months 1-2 years 2-3 More than o
months

-1 year years years 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - * 1,698.56 11.95 3.9 0.69 - 1,715.11
- considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - R - R
-which have significant increase
in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - . - N
- credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade - - - - - - - N
Receivables-considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - R - . R
which have significant increase in
credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - . B . =
credit impaired

Less: Allowance for bad and - - - - - . - .
doubtful debts (Disputed + —T
Undisputed)

= - 1,698.56 11.95 3.9 0.69 1,715.11
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

11

12

13

14

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
On current accounts

Fixed Deposit
Cash on hand

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
On current accounts

Fixed Deposit
Cash on hand

Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent
Balance in unpaid dividend account *

Balance in unpaid capital reduction account**

In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months but
less than 12 months from balance sheet date

China Merchants Bank

Note:

**Capital reduction account balance of INR 13.59 Lakhs outstanding as on March 31, 2022 which will com

2023.

Other financial assets
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Accrued Income
Others

Other current assets
Advance recoverable in kind
Balance with Gavernment Authorities

Others
Prepaid expenses

Vendor and employee advances

Total

March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

83.34

1.71

85.05

March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

83.34

1.71

85.05

March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

34.03
13.60

1,692.83

1,740.46

March 31, 2022

plete the 7 year timeline by March 31,

As at
March 31, 2021

116.95
11.15
35.30

163.40

March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

759.10
88.61
17.01
41.34

906.06
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Notes forming part of the C d Fil
(AUl amount in Lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

15

Share capital
Equity shares

Authorized
Equity shares of INR 10 each
14% Preference Shares of INR 100 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid
Total

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding

Outstanding at the beginning of the year

Add: Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

for the year ended March 31, 2022

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equity Shares: The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. Dividend if any declared is payable in Indian
Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

() Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder

Equity shares of INR 10 each fully pald

Stuthi Reddy
Supriya Reddy Palem

Sanhita Reddy

Passage to India Master Fund Limited
Ashish Dhawan

Palem Srikanth Reddy

Note:

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
2,80,38,800 2,803.88 2,80,38,800 2,803.88
6,96,120 696.12 6,96,120 696.12
97,32,566 973.26 97,32,566 973.26
97,32,566 973.26 97,32,566 973.26

For the year ended March 31, 2022

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
97,32,566 973.26 97,32,566 973.26
97,32,566 973.26 97,32,566 973.26

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

% of holding in Number of % of holding in
Number of shares the class shares the class
10,00,000 10.27% 10,00,000 10.27%
10,00,000 10.27% 10,00,000 10.27%
10,00,000 10.27% 10,00,000 10.27%
7,01,586 7.21% 7,01,586 7.21%
6,78,189 6.97% 6,78,189 6.97%
6,02,261 6.19% 6,02,261 6.19%

*During the financial year Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy was expired. The shares are yet to be transferred to his nominee Ms. Supriya Reddy Palem.

(d) Details of Shares held by Promaters at the end of the year

(=)

(U]

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

S. No Promoter name No. Of Shares |% of total shares % Change during the No. Of Shares | % of total shares |  Change during
year the year
1|Palem Srikanth Reddy 6,02,261 6.19% 6,02,261 6.19% -
2| Stuthi Reddy 10,00,000 10.27% 10,00,000 10.27% -
3|Supriya Reddy Palem 10,00,000 10.27% 10,00,000 10.27% -
4|Sanhita Reddy 10,00,000 10.27% 10,00,000 10.27% -
5/ Soujanya Reddy Parvatha 26,619 0.48% 46,619 0.48% .
6|P Soujanya Reddy 25,000 0.26% 25,000 0.26% -
7|Palem Srinivas Reddy 2,600 0.03% 2,600 0.03% -
8|Daksh i Reddy 600 D.01% 600 0.01% -
Total 36,77,080 37.78% 36,77,080 37.78%

Nao class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the current year end.

Capital reduction of equity shares during 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date
Subsequent to the approval of the High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad for the State of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh for reduction of 60% of the paid up equity share capital during the financial year ended

March 31, 2016, the Company has returned an amount of INR 16.50 at a premium of INR 11.50 per share and cancelled extin;
2015. After reduction, the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of INR 19,51,84,850 consisting of INR 3,90,36

consisting of INR 1,56,14,788 equity shares of INR 5 each,

Aggregate number of capital reduction of equity shares

guished 60% of the equity shares of the Company of face value of INR 5 each in July
,970 equity shares of INR 5 each fully paid-up was reduced to INR 7,80,73,940

Number of shares

April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2022

234.22
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16 Other equity

Reserves and surplus

Capital Reserve
Securities premium
General reserve
Retained earnings

Total reserves and surplus

Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Foreign Currency translation reserve
Total other comprehensive income

Total Other equity

Nature and Purpose of reserve:

i. Capital Reserve

As at
31 March 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

142,80 142.80
6,720.30 6,720.30
1,325.24 1,325.24

(5,588.06) (6,229.26)
2,600.28 1,959.08
0.36 5.84
7.83 -7.76
8.19 -1.92
2,608.47 1,957.16

The reserve represents creation of capital reserve pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation. The Company uses capital reserve for

transactions in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

ii. Securities Premium Account

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium. In case of equity-settled share
based payment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and face value of share is accounted as securities

premium. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
iii. General reserve

iv. Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

The reserve represents the remeasurement gains/(losses) arising from the actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan of the
Company. The remeasurement gains/(losses) are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated under this reserve within
equity. The amounts recognized under this reserve are not reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

v. Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income as described in
accounting policy and accumulated in a separate reserve with in equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when

the net investment is disposed off.

17 Other financial liabilities
(a) Non-current

Dealer Deposits

(b) Current

Liability For Expenses
Unpaid dividends
Unclaimed capital reduction
Other Payables

As at
31 March 2022

As at

March 31, 2021

25.00 30.00
25.00 30.00
36.44 41.82

- 34.03
13.60 13.60
172.96 202.44
223.00 291.89
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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18

ii.

Provisions

Non-current

Gratuity (refer note below)

Current

Gratuity (refer note below)

Note;

As at
31 March 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

48.77 41.44
48.77 41.44
1.61 0.85
1.61 0.85

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of the Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in

continuous service for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the
employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionally 15 days salary multiplied for the number of the years of service.
The gratuity plan is unfunded. The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan are set out below.

. Change in projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year
Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Settlements

Benefits paid

Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year

Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
Service cost

Interest cost

Expected returns on plan assets

Net gratuity costs

Expense recognized in OC|
Recognized net actuarial (gain)/ loss

. Key actuarial assumptions

Financial assumptions

Discount rate

Expected return on plan assets
Withdrawal Rate

Salary escalation rate

Demagraphic assumptions

Mortality rate as per Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 table

As at
31 March 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

42.29 33.28
7.08 7.05
2.81 1.77

(1.47) (5.84)

(0.34) 8.71

50.37 44,97
7.08 7.05
2.81 1.77
9.89 8.82

(1.47) -5.84
6.57% 6.04%
7.00% 7.00%

For Service 4 years
and below 5%

For Service 5 years
and above 2%

For Service 4 years
and below 5%

For Service 5 years
and above 2%
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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19

Projected defined benefit obligation

Delta effect of +1% change in discount rate (4.78) (5.43)
Delta effect of -1% change in discount rate 5.85 6.57
Delta effect of -1% change in salary escalation rate 4.56 4.80
Delta effect of -1% change in salary escalation rate (4.06) (4.09)
. Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation
1 year 0.68 0.85
2 to 5 years 3.66 4.30
6 to 10 years 10.19 120.70

More than 10 years - .

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the discount rate and salary
escalation rate. The calculation of the net defined benefit liability is sensitive to these assumptions. Sensitivity to these factors is
disclosed above.

As at As at
Borrowings 31 March 2022 March 31, 2021
Current
Secured, loans repayable on demand from banks
Bank Over draft 3,147.38 2,786.71
3,147.38 2,786.71
Note:

. Loan repayable on demand from banks is in the nature of bank over draft, secured by way of fixed deposits amounting to INR 1400.00

lakhs and carries 1.5% over and above the pledged fixed deposits interest rates per annum.

i. Net debt reconciliation

Amounts

Net debt as at April 1, 2019 1,209.42
Cash flows, net (1,209.42)
Interest expense 55.38
Interest paid (55.38)
Net debt as at April 1, 2020 -
Cash flows, net 2,786.71
Interest expense 262.79
Interest paid (262.79)
Net debt as at March 31, 2021 2,786.71
Cash flows, net 3,147.38
Interest expense 303.95
Interest paid (303.95)

Net debt as at March 31, 2022 3,147.38
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20 Trade payables

21

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

As at
31 March 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 56.38 180.84
56.38 180.84
Trade Payables ageing schedule
31 March 2022 Current
Unbilled . Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
la oo
Particulars Dues Not Due | Less than [ o years| 2-3years More than 3 Total
1 year years
TIT e
{ii) Disputed dues - MSME . - - - - -
(iii) Others - - 56.38 - - 56.38
{iv)Disputed  dues - Others - . - - - -
Total - - 56.38 - - 56.38

Trade Payables ageing schedule

31 March 2021 Current
Unbitled s Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment
jeut F
Particulars Dues Not Due Le1§sy th:n 1-2years | 2-3years |More than 3 years Total
'eal
(i) MSME - - - - - R
(ii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - N
(iii) Others - - 180.84 - - 180.84
{iv)Disputed dues - Others - - - - - 5
Total - - 180.84 = - 180.84
Note:

1. Refer note 31 for the Company’s liquidity risk management process
2. The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors,
Details of dues to such parties are given below:

31 March 2022

March 31, 2021

The principal amount remaining unpaid as at the end of the year

The amount of i accrued and r ining unpaid at the end of the year

Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16, of (MSMED Act 2006) along with the amounts of payments made beyond the appointed date
during the year.

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment without the interest specified under the {MSMED Act 2006)

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the
small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the (MSMED Act 2006)

Other current liabilities

Statutery dues payable

Balances with government authorities
Professional charges

Total other current liabilities

As at As at
31 March 2022 March 31, 2021
14.46 17.47
117 .
2.78 -
18.41 17.47




Palred Technologies Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Revenue from operations

Sale of Goods
Sale of Services

Other income

Interest income

Dividends From Mutuat Funds

Provision no longer required, written back
Miscellaneous income

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Inventory at the end of the year

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances

Contribution to Pravident Fund and ESI
Gratuity expenses
Staff welfare expenses

Finance cost
Interest on borrowing

Interest expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of ROU Assets
Amortization of other intangible assets

Other expenses

Rent

Rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance - others
Website Maintenance

Freight charges

Insurance

Office maintenance

Business promotion expenses
Postage and courier

Power and fuel

Travelling and conveyance
Delivery charges

Legal and professional charges
Auditor's Remuneration *

Hosting expenses

Refunds related expenses
Communication expenses
Packing material

Foreign exchange difference, net
Due from collection agencies written off
Bank charges

Printing and stationery

Sales commission

Online platform fee

Packing Charges

Sitting fees

Miscellaneous expenses

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

12,608.64 11,541.62
150.13 158.60
12,758.77 11,700.22

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

76.66 91.97
0.20 1.27
9.85 32.60

17.20 52.10

103.91 177.94

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

1,441.00 1,187.04
(2,083.89) {1,441,00)
(642.89) (253.96)

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

772.84 633.02
37.06 29.99
9.89 8.81
15.46 16.79
835.25 688.61

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

303.95 262.79
19.55 10.90
323.50 273.69

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

15.23 15.69
45.87 51.95

1.60 3.72
62.70 71.36

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

8.00 -
69.87 35.67
11.22 20.61

8.01 9.27

8.26 2.94
21.99 3.37
72.89 65.53

1,543.92 1,334.07

0.46 0.65
19.55 16.72
15.60 15.43

261.76 294.14
51.10 70.86
20.50 20.50
24.48 18.91
75.81 37.72
14.40 9.86
55.60 44.57
34.72 21.14

1.02 18.04
26.51 14.43

- 0.05
75.89 -

4.7 8.13
70.10 55.36

2.35

127.68 161.74

2,626.40 2,279.71

*Note : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of Goods and service tax)

As auditor:
Statutory audit

In other capacity:
Other matters

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

20.00 20.00
- 0.50 0.50
Iin) 20.50 20.50




Palred Technologies Limited

Notes forming part of the Ci

lidatad Financial 1ts for the year ended March 31, 2022

{All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

29 Earnings/ Loss per share
Earnings per equity share (EPES)
Basic earnings /{loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year.
Diluted earnings /(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to equity holders {after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity
shares into equity shares.
The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loss attributable to equity holders (171.43) 251,35
Weighted average number of equity shares 97,32,566 97,32,566
Basic loss per share (INR) (1.76) 2.58
Diluted loss per share {INR) (1.76) 2.58
30  Fair value measurements
(i) Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financfal liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped inta three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on
the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial fnstruments.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data either directly
or indirectly.
Level 3: If one or more of the slgnificant inputs is nat based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
(ii) Financial assets and financial liabilitles measured at fair value March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
Financial assets
Current Investments - - 22.95 -
There are no transfers between levels during the year. The Group's palicy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the reporting period.
(iif) Financial instruments by category
For amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost
Financial Assets
Current Investments - - 22,95 -
Trade receivables - 1,376.24 - 1,715.11
Cash and cash equivatents - 27.75 85.05
Other Bank balances - 2,377.13 - 1,740.46
Other financial assets - 39.29 - 163.40
Total financial assets - 3,820.41 22,95 3,704.01
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 3,147.38 - 2,786.71
Trade payables - 56.38 - 180.84
lease liahility - 39.57 - 45.78
Other financial liabilities 222.98 - 291.52
Total financial liabilities - 3,466.31 - 3,304.85
Set out below s a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Campany’s financial instruments carrled at amortised cost:
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Carriying amournt Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 1,376.24 1,376.24 1,715.11 1,715.11
Cash and cash equivalents 27.75 21.75 85.05 B85.05
Other Bank balances 2,377.13 2,377.13 1,740.46 1,740.46
Other financial assets 39.29 39.29 163.40 163.40
Total financial assets 3,820.41 3,820.41 3,704.01 3,704.01
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 3,147.38 3,147.38 2,786.1 2,786.71
Trade payables 56.38 56.38 180.84 180.84
lease liability 39.97 39.57 45.78 45.78
Other financial liabilities 222.98 222.98 291.52 291.52
Total financial liabilities 3,466.31 3,466.31 3,304.85 3,304.85
The carrying amounts of trade and other r: , trade bl cash and cash eq and other bank balances are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to
their fafr values, due to thelr short term nature.
iv. The Group’s principal financial liabitities, comprise other payables. The main purpase of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group’s operations. The Group’s principal financial assets

include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The Group alse holds FYTPL investments.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature. Difference between carrying
amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financial assets, other financial liabllities subsequently measured at amortised cost is not. significant in each af the years presented. For all other
amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

For financial assets measured at fair values, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.



Palred Technologies Limited

Notes forming part of the C

lidated Financial for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All ameunt in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31

33

n

Financial instruments risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk
policies are blished to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group and seek to, where appropriate, minimize potential impact of the risk and to control and meniter such

risks. There has been no change to the Company’s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks or the manner in which it manages and measures

the risks.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s exposure to the financial risks associated with financial instruments held in the ordinary course of business and the objectives,

policles and processes for management of these risks:

. Market risk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair vatues or future cash flows that may results from adverse changes in market rates (such as interest rates) or in the price of market risk-
sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk fs attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments. The Group's exposure to market
risk is a function of investing activities.

Interest rate

risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's investments in deposits Is with
banks and therefore do hot expose the Group to significant interest rates risk. The Group's rate borrowing s subject to interest rate risk. However the same is fixed at 1.5%+ interest rates an
finvestments in deposits. Accordingly, no interest rate risk is perceived.

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Fixed rate

instruments

Financial assets 2,354.41 1,692.83
Financial

Uabilities

Commodity rate

risk:

Exposure to market risk with respect to commodity prices primarily arises from Group's purchase and sale of computers, mobiles, electronic products, fashion accessories and related services.
These are commodity products, whose prices may fluctuate significantly over short periods of time. The prices of the Group's purchases generally fluctuate in line with commodity cycles and are
generally more volatile depending upon the market conditions. C ity price risk exps is and d through operating procedures and sourcing policies. For the reparting
periods presented, the Group had not entered into any material derivative contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuations in commodity.

Credit risk

Credit risk on Cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group generally invest in deposits with banks and financial fnstitutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic
credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in Uquid mutual fund units and certificates of deposit which are funds deposited at a bank for a specified time perfod. None of
the Group's cash equivalents, including term deposits (i.e. certificates of deposits) were past due or impaired as at the reporting periods.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages fts liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed canditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Graup’s reputation.

The Group's principle sources of liquidity are cash and cash and current i The Group believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements.
Accordingly, no liquidity risk is percefved. The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and maintains adequate source of funding. The Group had following working capitat at the end of
the reporting year.

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current Assets 6,928.67 6,116.16
Current liabilities 3,486.35 3,323.17
Working Capital 3,442.32 2,792.99

Except for other non-current financial liabilities, all the contractual maturities of sign1f=icant financial liabilities are payable on demand or are expected to be paid with in one year from the
respective reporting years. Dealer deposits are expected to be settled beyond 1 year from the respective reporting years.

Foreign Currency

Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, mainly in the nature of purchases denominated in foreign currencies and other expenditures like
sourcing commission. As a policy, the Group does not hedge any of its exposure to foreign currency

Excessive risk concentration

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails ta meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk is managed through credit
approvals and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of callection agencles to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group establishes an aliowance
for credit losses and impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other receivables.

Financial assets that are neither past due or nor impaired

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies.
Investments primarily nclude investment in liquid mutual fund units and certificates of deposit which are funds deposited at a bank for a specific time period. Nene of the Group's cash
equivalents, including term deposits (i.e. certificates of deposits) were past due ar impaired as at the reporting period.

Trade and other
receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainty by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and region
in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment.

The group has expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Group uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade and other receivables.
The provision matrix takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors such as default risk of industry, credit ratings from credit rating agencies and historical experience for
customers.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue ta pravide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
shareholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets. Gearing ratio is nil as at various reporting dates. There have been no material breaches in the financial covenants of
any borrowing in the current period.
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Nates forming part of the C d Financial
(All amount. in Lakhs, untess otherwise stated)

for the year ended March 31, 2022

34  Related Party disclosures

(a} Names of related parties and description ef relationship as identified and certified by the Group:

Helding Company
Palred Technologles Limited

Entity under common control
Indian

Palred Electronics Private Limited
Palred Retail Private Limited

Palred Technology Services Private Limfted

Foreign

Palred Online Bilism Teknoljileri Ticaret Anonim Sirketi, Turkey
Palred Electronics Limited (‘POT’), Hong Kong
Palred Technology Shenzhen Company Ltd, China

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Mr. Pinekalapati Harish Naidu, CFO

Mrs. Shruti Rege, Company Secretary

Ms. Supriya Reddy
Ms. Stuthi Reddy

(b) Tra with related parties:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 11, 2021
Mr. Palem Supriya Reddy Remuneration® 15.00 10.00
Mr. Palem Supriya Reddy Reimbursement of expenses 1.16 0.82
Mr, Pinekalapati Harish Naidu Salaries including bonuses 35.00 27.92
Mr. Pinekalapati Harish Naidu Reimbursement of expenses 0.19 0.0z
Mrs. Shruti Rege Salaries including bonuses 8.63 6.43
Ms. Stuthi Reddy Rent a.00 7.00
"Remuneration not include post employment benefits and other long term employee benefit e which are ¢ d for Company as a whole.
( ¢} Balances receivable/(payables) Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ms. Stuthi Reddy - -0.74
35 Contingent liabilities and pending litigations As at As at

(a) Disputed income tax liabilities

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Assessment year 2006-07 onwards - refer note below * 602.00 602.00
(b) Claim against company not acknowledged as debt - (GST)
Assessment year 2022-23 ** 129.36 -

Note:

*  Pursuant to the income tax assessment for the financial year 2006- 07 onwards, the group had received various demands from the income tax authorities in relation to the inadmissibility of
certain expenditure in accordance with the provisions of the fncome tax law and compliances with the anm's tength guidelines in relation to international transactions with associated enterprises.
The management, on the bass of its internal assessment of the facts of the case, the underlying nature of transactions, the history of judgements made by the various appellate authorities and
the necessary advise received from the independent expert engaged in this regard, is of the view that the probability of the case being settled against the Company is remote and accordingly do

nat foresee any adjustment to the finanefal statements in this regard.

** Pursuant to the GST audit for the financial year 2017-18 to 2018-19, the Palred had received showcause notice from GST department for GST payable on sale of assets on 05.01.2022 with

demand amount of Rs. 6,300,000,

The Palred had also recetved demand cum showcause notice from GST department for GST payable on verification of TRAN-1 document with demand amounting to Rs.5,895,281 and Rs.741,135.
The management, on the basis of its internal assessment of the facts of the case, the underlying nature of transactions is of the view that the probability of the case being settled against the
Company is remote and accordingly do not faresee any adjustment to the financial statements in this regard.

36 Segment reporting

After considering the Company's business model and the internal financial reporting, the management has identified only one reportable segment which is “Trading in camputers, mobiles,

electronic products, fashion accessories and providing retated services™. Further, all operations and location of PPE of the Company are based in India and hence,

are applicable in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108- Operating segments.

37 i Details of Benami Property held

The group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the group for holding any Benami property.
ii. The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
Relationship with Struck off Companies under section 24B of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Comparies Act, 1956.

The group do not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

39 Compliance with number of layers of companies
The group have complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

no separate financial disclosures
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Palred Technologies Limited

Notes forming part of the Ci i d Financial S for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amount in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
40  Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:
{f) The group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest In ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficfaries) or
(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(i{)The group have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recarded in writing or otherwise) that the
Group shall:

(a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitfes fdentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b)provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

41 Undisclosed income
The Group do not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year (previous year) in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

42 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

43 The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the l and post- L has ived Presidential assent on 28, 2020. The Code
has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which
the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued.

The Group will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine
the financial impact are published.

44 The lidated financial st are app! d for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 16, 2022.

45  Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to confirm presentation as perInd AS required by Schedule lil of the Act.

As per our report of even date

For MSKA & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Palred Technologies Limited

Firm Reistration No.:105047W CIN: L72200TG1999PLCO33131
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S.Vijaya Saradhi
Director;

P Supriya Re
Director

Membership No: 214198 \ DIN:00055870 DIN: 03089889

Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad

Date: May 16, 2022 - May 14, 2022 Date: May :,:3:22)_
Pinebbsise (s Fare Wardu Shruti Rege

Finance Officer Company Secretary
. Membership No: A43523

Place: Hyderabad
Date: May 16, 2022

Place: Hyderabad
AL Date: May 16, 2022




